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PRESS: Akaku: Maui community Television, Inc.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for April
27th , 2012 is now in session. The time is 9:03. Chair would like to introduce the Members that
are present this morning. We do have Member Carroll, Member Baisa, Member Couch-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --good morning, Member Victorino-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Morning, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Morning, and Chairman Mateo. Excused at this time are Members Cochran,
Hokama, and White. From the Administration, we do have Jeffrey Ueoka, Deputy Corporation
Counsel as well as the Budget Director, Sandy Baz.
MR. BAZ: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha. Also joining us this morning is Member White. From the
Administration [sic], we do have Scott Kaneshina, Michele Yoshimura, Josiah Nishita, and
Camille Sakamoto. Members, we do have several people signed up for public testimony this
morning, but before we receive public testimony, Chair would like to say that some of the
Members have requested to leave early. And before leaving, you know, I hope we can conclude
the Revolving/Special Funds for Fiscal Year 2013 and once we're done with that, at least, you
know, all of the Members have had an opportunity to review the entire Budget for Fiscal Year
2013. Some Members have asked to turn in their Budget Proposal early. The Chair will accept
that but the Chair will expect you to come back to receive all of the budgets that had been turned
in. We need quorum to receive that proposals, so I encourage all of you to remain here, you
know, prior to, you know, not having quorum for this morning as well as this afternoon so...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: May I please ask you, what time do you intend to reconvene in the
afternoon so that we'll be here?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair is planning to reconvene at four o'clock this afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That will give ample time for all of the Members to complete their
Budget Proposal. Okay. With that, for those that are providing public testimony this morning,
you do have three minutes to provide your testimony, one minute to conclude. If you can come
up to the lectern, provide us your name, organization that you represent, provide your testimony,
and once done, if you can remain for few seconds, Members may have questions for you. Before
we take public testimony, if every one of us could put our cell phones to the silent mode or turn
it off. Okay. The first person to provide public testimony is Tiare Martin.

ITEM BF-1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (CC 12-59 and 12-72)
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
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MS. MARTIN: Good morning, Council Members, my name is Tiare Martin and I'm from...I'm the
Maui Site Manager for Oceanit Laboratories, which is a high tech, high tech company across the
Hawaiian islands, and I'm here to testify today on behalf of the Maui Economic Development
Board. The Maui Economic Development Board provides me and my team with invaluable
services. They've organized quite a few initiatives to help us move forward in our business and
developing a high tech community in Maui. They've...I've attended workshops to help develop
our business development practices. They've also coordinate a yearly job fair, which in the past
ten years we've hired over 15 of our employees from. They also organized and produced the
AMOS Conference, which is a premier conference in space situational awareness, where I've
had the opportunity to speak with several of our national leaders in space. From meetings like
this, we've actually in the past eight years, brought over $50 million in contracts to Maui, and the
Maui Economic Development Board is in direct support of us getting this type of funding. I'm
not only here as a voice from the High Tech community, but also just as a kamaaina, a Hawaiian,
and a mom. 1 feel fortunate to have an organization like the Maui Economic Development Board
here in Maui. They organize numerous conferences and initiatives for our students and our
teachers to help prepare and develop our work force. They have a vision and a passion to build a
better Maui nui and by their example, they motivate and inspire people in our community to get
out and help. They do this, you know, for me and it has provided the real understanding that we
are all here to help take care of this place. So this morning, I am very thankful for your time and
I respectfully ask that you continue to support the Maui Economic Development Board as they
have so diligently supported people of Maui County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr, Chairman. Ms. Martin, good morning and thank you
for being here. Thank you for your testimony. Just out of curiosity, since MEDB has been
instrumental in helping the business progress especially through the assistance in assisting with
$50 million in contracts, does Ocean Tech [sic] provide any contributions back to MEDB in
support of their continuing effort to continue to promote businesses?
MS. MARTIN: Definitely, we not only have a presence on the Board, many of my team members spend
time supporting all of the initiatives from Maui Economic Development Board. I just helped
with the STEM Conference. I often go and speak with students and teachers in the community,
trying to close the gap between industry and what's going on in education. We also support the
education fund that's through the Ke Alahele Education Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So there is both in kind and financial contributions?
MS. MARTIN: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more question for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
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MS. MARTIN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Keone Hiraide.
MR. HIRAIDE: Hi. Good morning, my name is Keone Hiraide and I'm here to support the Maui
Economic Development Board. I'm also with Oceanit as the previous speaker, Tiare. And as a
recent graduate from the University of Hawaii at Hilo, my major's computer science and after
graduating I was looking to enter the work force. And I saw an article in The Maui News and it
was about the High Tech Job Fair that they host every year in Kihei and this job fair's, as Tiare
has mentioned, is hosted by the Maui Economic Development Board. So I took this opportunity
to go to this job fair and I was able to meet various companies, get a feel, and learn about what
kind of companies are in Hawaii. And this is how I was able to speak with Oceanit, which is my
current company. They matched my skill set and I was able to apply and I got hired. And I
really like my current job and I wouldn't have gotten this opportunity if it wasn't for the Maui
Economic Development Board. So if you could please continue to support MEDB. They help a
lot of students like me and this...various different people so thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again and Chair would like to...thank you, no questions. Chair would like to recognize the
presence of Member Victorino. Next testifier is Livit Callentine.
MS. CALLENTINE: Good morning, good morning, Mr. Chair and Committee Members. I have a
human easel with me today because I didn't have an easel and so she will not speak. I did check
with the office to begin with and they said that would be okay, so thank you for allowing me to
testify this morning on item BF-1. My name is Livit Callentine and I've been a Land Use
Planner with the County for over seven years. This is the first time I've been on this side of the
podium. I've usually been sitting over at the staff table in your Land Use Committee. So I'm a
little more nervous than I, than I am when I'm over there. Today, I'm testifying on my own time
and my own behalf, but I do believe that my remarks could be spoken by any other County
employee. I'm here to ask you to include adequate funding in the FY 2013 Budget to provide for
retroactive reinstatement of step movements for all County employees. I'm gonna go over the
top 12 reasons why you should do this. You should have received a handout documenting my
testimony also. I know this is very small and you probably won't be able to see it. So the
salaries for all bargaining members have been frozen since July 1, 2008. There have been no
step movements since that time. From July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011, these same employees
were forced to take a total of 12 unpaid dates, days off. Mr. Chair, during the three and a half
years since our pay has been frozen, the cost of living on Maui has risen significantly and I want
to bring a few of those costs to your attention. I know you are aware of them, but it's pretty
dramatic when you see the numbers. Electricity is up 63 percent, health insurance premiums are
up 48 percent, property taxes have gone up 25 percent. The cost of fuel for our vehicles, that's
up 17 percent. Food consumed at home--never mind going out to dinner 'cause I don't do that-has risen 16 percent and since 2008. Water rates have gone up 14 percent and wastewater about
10 percent. With all this dismal news about rising costs, has anything gone down during the
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same period? Well, yes, this year, the homeowner's exemption was reduced by 33 percent and
the other thing that's gone down for me is I use to save about $1,500 a year. After paying the
basic services nowadays, I don't save a dime. Since 2008, I've been unable to give any money to
charities. I use to tithe at least $1,000 a year, but reduced personal income has...I can no longer
do that, and it does affect, I believe, directly the well-being of our community because we don't
have the money to give back. And then next, I want to take a look at how the State and the
Nation are doing to see if there was any good news on that front, and in contrast to public
employees' income in the past year, average State income Statewide has gone up 4.5 percent.
The rest of the Nation is doing even better averaging 5.1 percent increase over the last year.
According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, if you earned $45,000 in 2007, you would need to
earn $50,000 in 2012 just-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. CALLENTINE: --to break even. That's a 10 percent increase. Thank you, Mr. Chair. We know
the City and County Honolulu Salary Commission supports a 3 to 5'/2 pay raise for Department
heads, because they said most have not had an increase in more than four years and they feel a
modest increase is reasonable. I've included in your handout a list of the sources that I consulted
for my presentation. Mr. Chair and Committee Members, County employees and their families
have sacrificed for four years to help balance the budget. Enough is enough, please budget
adequate money to fund retroactive step movements for County of Maui employees. Please don't
forget us. Thank you, mahalo nui loa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Hard to swallow, right?
Ms. Livit, thank you for this information. I just had one question on the Statewide personal
income. Is that all of the jobs in the State of Hawaii or just government employees?
MS. CALLENTINE: On this, on the increase of 4.5 percent-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MS. CALLENTINE: --Statewide personnel income? That's all employees-CHAIR PONTANILLA: All employees-MS. CALLENTINE: --in the State of Hawaii.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in the State of Hawaii.
MS. CALLENTINE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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MS. CALLENTINE: That doesn't include government employees 'cause we wouldn't...we would
actually...actually it would...it does include government employees, but we would have brought
that number down.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll ask the Budget Director because of through the bargaining
agreements-MS. CALLENTINE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, how pay raises are dealt with in regards to employees, not only
for the County of Maui probably Statewide government employees.
MS CALLENTINE: Yes, yeah, I...Mr. Chair, I'm aware that, you know, this is a negotiated item. I'm
not asking the Council to do something that you can't do, but I'm asking you to set aside funds
for an increase.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep.
MS. CALLENTINE: Our families are hurting and, and yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll follow up with the Budget Director in regards to what you just presented
us. It's very, very interesting. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Chairman, I do and I just wanted to inform the
testifier because it seems like, you know, there is, there is an element missing. In the last couple
of years, this body has worked real hard to try to save and maintain County employee positions,
so it's not like we haven't been trying to make efforts. The important part to remember is yes,
everybody is hurting and the same, the same furlough reductions you did, we did too. So, you
know, I understand the need for step movements, but you also need to understand that this body
has been working diligently to try to save and maintain without having to reduce work force. So
I just needed to, to let you know that part too, thank you.
MS. CALLENTINE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any...Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, thank you, Ms. Callentine for being here. Also just
to...need to find out, you know, since we're doing...since it was proposed to do a revenue
neutral budget, which means that we're not raising more than last year or not going less than last
year so far is what the proposal is because of some taxes being raised. Just curious as where you
would suggest we get the funding, because even raising some taxes according to the proposed
budget, we're revenue neutral. So in order to do something like that we would have to increase
something or take from somewhere else. Just curious as to...
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MS. CALLENTINE: I can't speak to that, Mr. Couch.
know you have a tough job and you
have to balance many, many, many interests and needs, and so I can't speak to where you would
take that funding and I'm not even sure that you would...do not have adequate money right now
to fund a retroactive 10 percent increase for all employees. As far as I can understand, there's
Carryover/Savings and...but I'm not a budget person. I'm not a budget expert so I can't speak to
that. apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you again for being here
this morning. You're brave.
MS. CALLENTINE: Thank you, thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Karen-MS. PHANEUF, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Phaneuf.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Phaneuf, fancy name you got.
MS. PHANEUF: Hello, my name is Karen Phaneuf. I work for the Department of Public Works. I'm
the Administrative Officer, which means I do all the personnel for my Department, and I would
like to testify just on behalf of the employees, for all of the County but especially my
Department. I wanted to just remind you that our most important asset is our employees. We
wanna try to keep `em. We wanna try to do a great job with the County. If we do lose our
personnel, that is a terrible loss for us. It takes a lot to train people, to hire people, to recruit
people. Some of our lists have only one name, some of our lists have no names, and I think that
by instituting some kind of cost-of-living increase for our employees, it would help us retain our
personnel and our work force. Our people are really, really important so that's what I wanted to
say just don't forget the people. I know we need dump trucks and we need other stuff too, but we
still need our people, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Again, thank you very
much on your testimony. Last person to sign up for public testimony prior to the meetings is
Scott Nunokawa.
MR. NUNOKAWA: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Morning.
MR. NUNOKAWA: --Members of the Council. My name is Scott Nunokawa. I'm here as a member of
the Ka Ipu Kukui Steering Committee and I'm speaking in that capacity. Maui nui, as you well
know, occupies a special place in the State, country, and the world. However, we face many
challenges that could very well erode the unique splendor of these special islands. A significant
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effort has been made over the past five years to recruit and train future leaders of Maui nui to
prepare them for the issues they will encounter. The synergy and the social capital that flows
from a bonded group of leaders dedicated to the prosperity of the County will undoubtedly
ensure the success of Maui nui as we approach these obstacles. Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows is a
yearlong program designed to train community-identified future leaders. From concerns and
beliefs first expressed by Decisions Maui in the 1980s and reinforced by the 2003 Focus Maui
Nui visioning process that Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows Program was conceived to provide significant
help in identifying and training leaders from all segments of our community, through a
community based program specifically designed to address aspects of planning for Maui nui's
future. Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows Program has provided leadership training and experience, and
experience to five classes of Fellows, totaling nearly 60 participants. In order to continue to
assure classes of Fellows and to assure they're representative of a broad spectrum of the
community, Ka Ipu, Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows Program could really use the support of Maui County.
Let me be clear, Ka Ipu Kukui is not just another leadership program. It targets a specific
segment of the community. The program starts by reaching out to richly diverse segments of our
community and to have Fellows classes that are diverse as possible. Throughout the program,
the Fellows are encouraged to view things from a community-based perspective, and the
program strives to provide them opportunity to look at issues from many points on the compass.
In other words, the proverbial, walk in somebody else's shoes, or more accurately the walk in
many other people's shoes, even if the perspective may be formed to their own. The program
further provides the fellows with tools to make decisions that are inclusive and well thought out
in terms of the whole community rather than a single entity or a segment, a single segment of the
community. As the program reaches to all segments of our community, irrespective of economic
status, a large portion of our request for funds would be used for tuition assistance to assure the
economics do not hinder future leaders from having the opportunity to participate in this
program. Remember the old saying that feed them a fish, eat for a day?
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. NUNOKAWA: Thank you. Teach them to fish, eat for a lifetime. Well, I would suggest that an
updated version of this is teach them to manage the fishing resource for the good of the
community, and the community's children's children's children will eat for a lifetime. This is
what Ka Ipu Kukui strives to be a part of. Finally I want to thank the Council for considering Ka
Ipu Kukui's request. I realize you have a very difficult job in front of you and you have very
hard decisions to make. We hope you are able to see the long range benefits that this program
will have for our community. I also came today because it was brought to my attention that
Council might have some questions of the program, and so I stand able to...or hopefully able to
respond to questions. I can respond to one that got back to me that not a penny of this funding
will go to any kind of food, snacks, drinks, or any other nutrients whatsoever.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none, thank you again.
MR. NUNOKAWA: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair would like to recognize the presence of Member Hokama. Members,
there's no more testifiers this morning. Everybody in the Chambers had already provided their
testimony, so without any objections, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, this morning we gonna finish our review of Appendix
A, Part 2, Special Purpose Revenues-Schedule of Revolving/Special Funds for Fiscal Year 2013.
It is in your proposed Budget Bill and if everyone got it, we'll start off with item D. Mr. Baz?
SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUES — SCHEDULE
OF REVOLVING/SPECIAL FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Partially this fund, well this fund is funded by the plan review permit
fees that are charged by the Department of Public Works and their Development Services
Administration. Discussion of this topic happened during the budget process and budget review
of the Department as the Department has personnel related to this, and so if you refer back to,
hold on, Pages 6-403 through 6-406, it relates to specifically to the expenditures of this revolving
fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Pages again? Six...
MR. BAZ: Six dash four o three...6-404, Mr. Chair, is the budget details and position details. It does
fund 14 positions out of this revolving fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo, you got questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My only issue is that I hope the Department will meet the goals of the
purpose of this fund, that was to expedite permit process and approval and inspections regarding
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those permits, so I hope we make a measure, performance measurement of this one, Chairman,
thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We go to the next one, E, Highway Beautification and Disposal of
Abandoned. Vehicles Revolving Fund, Section 3.25.030, Maui County Code. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As it describes, this is a Highway Beautification Fund that includes
beautification activities along the County roadways as well as the disposal of abandoned
vehicles. You can see, Mr. Chair, there that we're expecting $1.3 million in revenue out of that
this year. And the items that are proposed for expenditure include one E/P for the Metals and
Abandoned Vehicles Program, $703,000 for the expenditure appropriation of the program itself,
which includes the salaries or $36,516, excuse me, Mr. Chair, is for salaries, provided that
170,000 shall be the grant for the Community Work Day. And $10,000 was added last year
during the budget deliberations for Teens On Call to maintain the Paia Bypass, the mini bypass,
which was opened, so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Carroll, question? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and this is something that may apply to several
of the other items. We have these provisos. These were last year's provisos, is that right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, most of them are last year's provisos. There's some in here that are new or that
have been modified based on the Department's request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So in this one or like for instance the 703...703,300, is that just
a Carryover from last year and we have to use that same amount or we can tweak that amount, I
mean, we can tweak it anyway, but is that a number you guys threw in there or is that something
we had last year?
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MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, that came from the Department. I would have to go back and look at the...1 don't
have last year's ordinance. I gotta look up last year's ordinance and then we can verify that
information.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. 'Cause it...we need to know if a proviso is no longer necessary
or needs to be tweaked. Would you have already made those changes on your side?
MR. BAZ: Yes, the Department request, this is the amount of money the Department of Environmental
Management, Solid Waste Division has requested for operations of this program, and so that's
what we put in with some scrutiny.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And lastly I know I asked the question before and I wasn't quite
sure of the answer. The total for FY 2013, that will then be taken into as a part of our revenue
and then we spend it down from there?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, the balance listed in the first column of page seven and eight regarding the
Schedule of Revolving/Special Funds is the estimated balance as of 6/30/2012, and this came
from the Department of Finance in about January or so, and this is revenue that they expect to
have received as of 6/30/2012. Anticipated revenue in the middle column there is revenue that
we actually expect to receive during Fiscal Year '13, which leaves a total, theoretically available
funds for Fiscal Year '13 of that right-hand column. So provisos would then reduce-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That number.
MR. BAZ: --the amount available from that number.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Great, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just following up with Mr. Couch, Chairman, so thank you. So Mr. Baz or
Mr. Ueoka, you know, we proviso that we gonna direct Community Work Day for 170,000,
Teens On Call, 10,000. I understand their organizations and, you know, they do good work and
their purpose. But what if another organization say, why don't I have the opportunity to bid for
those funds also and I can provide the same service and maybe at a lower cost? How do we
respond?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you. Currently it's as a grant so we're giving it out. Moving forward, we could
turn it into a contract for services and have it open to the RFP process.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, that's something we'll work in Policy, yeah, on the grants
program then. Thank you very much, Mr. Ueoka.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Questions have been asked, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Could you refresh our memory as where the money
is generated, that goes into the fund?
MR. BAZ: Sure, according to Section 3.25.020, the fees that are set forth in the annual budget in
revenue included in the Highway Beautification Fee, our fee of for sale of new and replacement
license plates, dealer plates, and special license plates; fees for registration of motor vehicles and
emblems or tags; fees for motor vehicle transfer and transfer penalty; fees for duplicate
certificate, certificate of registration and duplicate certificate of ownership and duplicate; fees for
correction of certificates; fees for power of attorneys; fees for out-of-state vehicle permits; and
fees for reassignment of passenger automobile plates. So basically, it's motor vehicle
registration...on your motor vehicle registration form there is a specific line for County
beautification. There's a State beautification fee and County beautification fee.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo? Okay. Next is the Molokai Diversified
Agricultural Revolving Loan. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Hold on, Mr. Chair, this is according to Act 387, 1998 of the Session Laws of the State of
Hawaii...Mr. Chair, I apologize, I'm unfamiliar with this Revolving Fund, we do have a balance
of $281,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff...about this fund here?
MR. KANESHINA: Just a sec, Chair, I'll have to get back to you on explaining F-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: --relating to the Molokai Diversified Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah. Give me a few minutes, thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep. We'll come back to that one. Construction Plan Review Revolving
Fund, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, this is plan review fees for construction according to
Section 18.24.010 of the Maui County Code, and the balance as of 6/30 is the $388,000. We
expect $2,000 in revenue for a total of $390,000, and if you give me a second, I can look up what
the fees come from. These are from Subdivision applications so the Subdivision reviews come
forward and they pay a fee based on that Subdivision application.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The proposal...I know there are some fee increases in the review process.
Will this be affected with the proposed increases?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, no, this is...the Subdivision fees were not requested to be revised in the
Appendix B.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: It was...in the Department of Public Works, it was mainly the Plumbing permit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Plumbing, okay, good. Mr. Carroll? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Baz, you're anticipating what it looks like
is one subdivision, I think, in the next year or at most, two.
MR. BAZ: That's quite possible, Mr. Chair, there hasn't been a lot of subdivision applications. There
hasn't been a lot of land development approvals, so...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Very good point. Mr. Baz, just a fast question. You know all these 201H's
that we approved, a whole bunch of 'em, do they pay a fee or they are exempt?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from my understanding, there is an exemption for 100 percent affordable housing
projects, 100 percent of the fee is exempted.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you know, the County's own project on Lanai is going through the
revisions for a final subdivision plat submittal and approval so then, you know, it's a County's
project and I not too sure if we exempt our own projects.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I don't know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's something, you know, we can review, but no, I understand the
purpose of the fund and I have no issues with it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I have no questions about the fund itself.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo? Okay. Next is the Rental Housing Development Revolving
Fund.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, this is a fund that we may want to review further in your Committee and dissolve.
It was established in 1990 for County Rental Housing Project rent monies in excess of expenses
shall be deposited into Revolving Fund whose proceeds shall be used for the purpose of
developing County Rental Housing Projects. It was meant, Mr. Chair, to be a Revolving Fund
similar to what's discussed a lot about revenue coming in and covering expenditures for new
projects. The County has not done and don't foresee in the foreseeable future, manage its own
Rental Housing Projects to receive this revenue like this, so this $52,000 has been sitting there
for significant period of time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Mr. Carroll? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo? Staff, I hope you got that information. Next one is Liquor
Education Fund, Hawaii Revised Statutes 281-16, 281-17(2), 281-17(3). Mr. Baz?
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MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The...according to State Law, the liquor...all the liquor funds are
required and managed by the Liquor Department. We discussed their revenue and expenditure,
and this was included as part of their revenue in that Department so, you know, if you'd want to
discuss their Department any further.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, questions? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My only thing on this one, you know, because...and I would agree with my
colleague, Ms. Baisa, that, you know, this is a risk that we should be...maybe have some greater
flexibility. And I'm with her in that we heard our youth the other night being taking very
responsible positions as our youth about the hazards of drinking-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Drinking, yep.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --so if there's ability to utilize these funds in a more, I would say, preventive
way and it's probably an educational component and again we may need to go to the Legislature
with a proposal, but, you know, I agree with her basic philosophy that, you know, sooner is
better than later, thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I also agree, it's too bad we cannot and if there's any way we
should be looking into that matter. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Baz, do you...can you tell us what the
percentage or what the revenues are based on? Are they a percentage of liquor fees?
MR. BAZ: From my understanding, it's a, it's a percentage...a set fee for the type of liquor that the
vendors pay back to the County. I'd have to double check that with the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Because it strikes me that it is a very small amount of revenue,
and the ratio of inspectors of licensees here is significantly higher...or lower, I should say than I
know on Oahu. We have 20 licensees per inspector and Oahu has about 70, so it...there...it may
be that we wanna take a look at shifting some of the resources from personnel expense to this
education fund. But I agree with my colleagues that we need to do more to keep people from
getting into this. As I said the other day, my brother-in-law succumbed to alcoholism, started at
a very young age and just simply, unfortunately just ended up drinking himself to death, went to
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rehab seven or eight times and finally just said, you know, I just can't do it and gave up the
ghost, so it's something we need to do. I wish it could be the Liquor and Drug Control
Department, but at this point, it's just liquor. We need to do more, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: N
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa followed by Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I appreciate the support from my colleagues.
You know, this has been something that I've tried to push now, like I told you guys, I got it
through Democratic, State Democratic Convention twice as a resolution, but nothing has
happened with it. And I'm wondering...we don't have to decide this today, but maybe next year
when we start working on our HSAC package, if that would be a good place to try and get
something introduced so that we can make a difference. I intend to put in my proposal, money to
continue that Teen Alcohol Prevention Program. I think it's very important. If we don't stop it
when they're teenagers, we're gonna proceed to adults and a lifetime of mess that we keep
cleaning up with new social programs. We've got to stop it so I really appreciate the support and
I will continue to bring it up as we work next year on HSAC, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair. Mr. Baz, is there anything in, excuse me, HRS, any
of the HRS that prohibits us from provisoing this to do something like this, possibly the one that
kids were up here, the Be a Jerk campaign? I can see, I just did a quick look at 281-17 and that's
where Liquor Control officers haven't had a chance to look at...-16.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before you answer that, Mr. Couch, we sent a correspondence to the Liquor
Department in regards to the use of this money, because at the time of the review, I think some
of the Members had questioned that, so we haven't gotten any response from the Liquor
Department. Hopefully they're listening, get some kind of response because I think, you know,
the education at the younger age, you know, will be very beneficial. Before I call on Member
Baisa, Mr. Baz, if...or Corporation Counsel, if you can provide some response to the questions
by Member Couch.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. We're not sure with the specifics of how it's operated. HRS 281-17
Section 3 states that in the last sentence, provided, that fine monies not to exceed 10 percent a
year of fines accumulated may be used to fund public liquor-related educational or enforcement
programs. But it seems that the fund as a whole is more used towards educational programs for
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the commission staff, commissioners, Liquor Control Adjudication Board Members, and
licensees and their employees.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well throwing in that last thing about liquor-related education
programs, I wonder if...are we allowed to proviso something that is essentially governed by
HRS? I would think we would be able to. We could, we could say providing that, you know,
80,000 be used to run the Be a Jerk program or something like that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on. Go ahead.
MR. UEOKA: I think we should probably work with Liquor to get you a more definitive response, but
we'd have to see where the amount in the budget comes from and, you know, like it says we
can't exceed 10 percent of...10 percent a year of fines accumulated, whatever that means. So I
think, so to just say broadly that, yeah, you can proviso whatever you want might be a untrue
statement, so I think it would be prudent to do a little more checking into that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So it does say 10 percent though, but no specifics.
MR. UEOKA: It says, provided, that fine monies not to exceed 10 percent a year of fines accumulated,
so I'm not real familiar with what that means so I'd like to check more into that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine, thank you.
MR. UEOKA: --before answering, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, in my previous work, I've done some research and we will have to
amend the law at the State level. However, you know, every year when the Liquor Department
comes, I always question them. They talk about liquor education and I say what are you doing
with this? They say they educate that they, the people who have the licenses about the liquor
laws, but I think that's not enough. I think we've got to do some education with the consumers.
So I think it will take legislative work, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine, thank you. Members, any more questions in regard...Member
Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. No further questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think we're on the right track.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White? Chairman Mateo? Next one is Animal Management Revolving
Fund, Chapter 3.84, Maui County Code. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, this is the Animal Management Program that is...funds the activities
that are involved in the Department of Housing Human Concerns, Animal Management
Program. These, as you are aware, are related to the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Spay and Neuter.
MR. BAZ: --Maui Humane Society as well as the Spay and Neuter Program. It says specifically the
purpose of the Animal Management Revolving Fund shall be to provide funds for Animal
Management in the County of Maui. Fees collected for licensing, impounds, redemptions,
adoptions, and pickups of animals shall be deposited into Animal Management Revolving Fund
and shall be used to fund Animal Management. So this revenue that is received, you can see
here, gets spent out. This is basically supposed to be the core of the operations of the Animal
Management Program. As you are aware, this is not the total expenditures that we have for the
program and so we do supplement it with General Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama followed by Member White.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I understand the role and we call it Animal Management. My
only, how shall I say it, issue because I always been a dog lover and dog owner from the time I
was an infant. You know, I was given a cocker spaniel that was pretty much my bodyguard and
through the years, you know, I've gone through lots of dogs, and therefore, we always had to get
a dog tag or dog license. Basically everything you see in the Code is about a dog, okay, but this
is about animal control, so why wouldn't we consider...and if you look at what pays under
licensing, it's only about dogs. There's nothing about any other animal in the Code, okay,
including dangerous dog, nuisance dog, just kidding. But we got issues now in the community
about fowl, chickens to be particular or fighting chickens, cats, horses, pet pigs, okay. So why
wouldn't we look at expand and say anything that is kept at a home as a pet must be licensed and
help pay for the program, because what makes them different from a dog. I mean, you know, a
lot of people say, well, you know, the dogs bark and whatnot. Well let me tell you, I got a lot
problem with stray cats and neighbor cats, okay. Lot of people get issue with roosters, okay, and
we've heard it all. We've got the complaints all the time, Chairman, about this and that. But if
you look the Code, my point is that the Code just specifically is driven about the dog only, okay.
and again, maybe I'm biased 'cause I'm a dog, you know, dog owner, previous dog owner and
dog lover. I think if we want to be fair to help provide for Animal Management officers that take
the gamut of the type of livestock and pet, domesticated pets we have in this County. Then I
think maybe we need to be more broad in our approach on how to generate revenue for this fund,
okay. And maybe they going say, well how come, he gonna ask the guy who has a guppy in a
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fishbowl or a goldfish in a fishbowl to pay a fee, too? I mean, I'm not saying we gotta take it to
that, but maybe it makes sense for us to look at other creatures that have created nuisances or
issues in the community as to be partly, to be part of what is covered under this program and to
maybe have it licensed to help pay for enforcement regarding noise control or nuisance control
or dangerous issue controls. I think maybe that would be a more fair way to approach this issue,
thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, very good points so we'll send that memo to Mr. Couch
department. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: After all that, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White? I'm sorry, only you, Mr. Hokama and you had questions. So Mr.
White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I agree with Mr. Hokama's analysis. We have many
animals and I would have no problem paying a licensing fee, because the reality is that if
there...and I recall a story in the newspaper couple of years ago, where there was, there were
horses in distress, and the Humane Society was not able or willing to address the issue. And I
think if we were to generate some additional revenues from those sources, it would...it may
make it more appropriate for them and more possible for them to deal with a broader range of
animal issues. And I, and I particularly like the idea of issuing or requiring a license to crow in
residential areas. So I'm sure Mr. Couch will be more than happy to tackle that one. So thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So I guess, Mr. Couch-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you're on the hook.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, one last thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Baz, could you provide us with historical, the historical revenues
for this Animal Management Fund. In my recollection was that... seen figures from a couple of
years ago, the revenues were about $80,000 and they've dropped pretty significantly, and I think
it's because we're not, maybe we're not doing enough to encourage people to license their
animals and I have to say I'm one of those. I haven't...I don't think I have bought dog licenses
in a couple of years. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz, if you can get that information for Mr. White,
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I can, I can look that up. One thing to know, from my recollection around,
from a few years ago, the fund wasn't being utilized on a regular basis to actually pay for the
program. It was pretty much, just totally General Fund, and then we started actually using the
what it... fund for what its purpose is. And Mr. Hokama's correct, in the Rates and Fees, they
only license is dog licenses. There are some items related to cat trap rental fees, but that's the
only other reference to any other type of animal or anything like that. Everything else is related
to dogs.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But my question was, whether you can tell us what the levels of revenue
used to be?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I would...I'd have to look that up.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Fine, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama, for that comments in regards to, you know,
different type animals that we have. When I look at the budget as being proposed, we've added
$200,000 for Spay and Neutering, and again this law only handles dogs so, yeah, I agree with
you. Okay. Next one is a Plan Review, Processing, and Inspection Revolving Fund. This is the
Fire Section 6.04B.050 [sic], Maui County Code. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This is for the Fire Review Fee revenue that we receive and it funds
the Fire Department review and inspection. Let's see, it is listed as well under the Fire
Prevention Program. A Revolving Fund on Pages 6-138, 6-139 in the budget detail itself for this
fund, Mr. Chair. There are two employees funded with this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions, Members? Seeing none, okay, next one is the Open
Space, Natural Resources, Cultural Resources, and Scenic Views Preservation Fund, Section
9-19, Revised Charter of the County of Maui 1983, as amended, Chapter 3.88, Maui County
Code. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In this item there are...this is the 1 percent of revenue, Real Property
Tax Revenue that is by Charter deposited into this Open Space, Natural Reserve [sic] and
Cultural Resources, and Scenic Views Preservation Fund. There's been much discussion on this.
These items that are listed in here are ones that have had prior discussion except for item number
two, which is Land Acquisition, and Lipoa Point is not the correct area but it is nearing Honolua
Bay and that is the correct tax map key, and I'm not sure if Mr. Carroll has the exact name of the
location. Member Cochran did but she's not here today and that's for amount of $31,500, and
that would be for grant to the Save Honolua Coalition.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Just fast question, Mr. Baz, in regards to reviewing all of the items
over here, the four items, you know, I know some of them are very old. So as far as statuses for
each of 'em, except for the Honolua one, which is fairly new and the Land Acquisition Subject to
Chapter 3.88, this is a Central Maui Regional Park, which was approved, I think was last year.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2012

The other two, I don't know how long it's been on the County books and if it's, you know, still
gonna go forward.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, they have been on for a significant period of time. Murphy's Beach on
Molokai, Chair Mateo's aware that we've been working with the landowner, and the landowner
doesn't necessarily want to work with us at sometimes, and there has been discussion and some
movement on that recently. They request, I think, the last request was how much funds the Parks
Department, you know, County would have to put in to get that area up to being a County park
and it is pretty significant amount of money. But, you know, it's something that for the
community over there would be a big benefit, and Mr. Mateo might have some other comments
if he so chooses. But, yeah, this is moving or still active, I should say, and the Mayor's
Executive Assistant, Zeke Kalua, has been in negotiations or not negotiations but has been in
contact with their attorneys recently to try to get some kind of agreement. Our attorneys are in
discussion with that as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This particular potential acquisition started
with Chairman Kawano, and during those years when the offer first came about, the landowner
was willing to offer this property to the County for $200,000 and unfortunately the County didn't
act on it. So these funds have been here for the last eight years and every time we keep
negotiating with the landowner and get to a close point, there is additional requests from the
landowner. I am totally frustrated. We are making a final push with the landowner to either tell
us if you're interested or not, but we're not gonna play this game anymore, because there's other
properties that we can also consider with these funds. So Mr. Kalua has been in contact with the
landowner. He tried to get consensus because at this point we really are quite close. It's strictly
because of how the property is gonna be used, what they prefer having being constructed on the
properties. We're talking about a restroom versus a Porta-Potty. We're talking about parking
stalls. These are all contentious things to the landowner so we're still in negotiation, and
hopefully in a very short period of time a decision will may, be made on do we dump this project
and move on, you know, or just continue to wait. But for myself, I've waited too long and I
think we need to make this decision and just call a spade a spade, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion on that one? The other one that I
have question on is the Maui, Central Maui Regional Parks. In last year's budget, it was looked
at 242 acres in the amount of $4 million and this time around is 220 acres for $5 million.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, yes, that's correct. We wanna...the Administration wants to thank
the Council for its support in the prior year's budget in putting this allocation in. It allowed the
Administration to start negotiations with the landowner. We have entered into negotiations. We
have made them an offer that they have taken to their Board. We made them an initial offer that
was related to our original request, which they rejected and so we made them a subsequent offer,
which is related to this appropriation request here. They did notify us that the amount of land
available for the park was reduced down to 220 acres, based on their project that would be
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adjacent to it, and so...and then we're looking at, you know, 25,000 an acre or less so it is a little
bit less than 25,000 an acre.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, how soon we going know?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, it's in, you know, as you will know that the owner has a Corporate Board that has
to make decisions on land disposal and it is, from my understanding, at their Board to make the
decision.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Interesting. Members, questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe we should take a look at their department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, my information is slightly different. Doesn't really matter at
this point in time. But, you know, what is interesting how we doing certain things like the Lipoa
Point, and again, you know, we can be talking about, like Mr., you know, Mateo mentioned the
about the...our opportunity and loss at 200,000. You know, we can talk about in the meetings of
us what we may wanna go up to, but I think for budgeting purposes, again we...this all
... (inaudible) ... I'd rather we just put $1. We know what's in the total fund balance-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --but for a project to keep it alive, $1. Okay. I not willing to put 5 million,
10 million dollars. But if we could've gotten a better price again or the County would say they
willing to go up to this point already so we stupid not to go lower. We'd be stupid to go lower,
okay, bad strategy we have, bad strategy. And my point is even with the Lipoa Point, what is the
Land Asset Manager position in Department of Finance? Isn't that what that position supposed
to be doing with some of these objectives for some of this projects? Looking at properties,
making certain assessments, and then making those determinations, especially if it's gonna
go...if we looking at foreclosure property, bankruptcy property...this is what I expect that
position to be doing, Chairman, not in nonprofit, working on our behalf. We already have a paid
position that we put in the budget and it's filled with...you know, we gotta learn to start using
our monies better, because I heard that testimony earlier this morning. Yeah, I mean, you know
again, you were right, it's the collective bargaining issue we shall honor, but anytime we increase
costs in personnel and we already got, paid for this, paying for this position, we get the long-term
liability to fund the fringes and the retirement. Okay. So, you know, I just bring this up because
I do not...I would like, and let me say this, I would like us to adjust how we approach this type
of acquisitions, the strategy that is involved, and to maintain the best possible price for the
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County taxpayers, 'cause this is who is paying for it, okay, and I'm one of those taxpayers. So I
think I can, I can say that I'd rather have it done much, much better because coming from private
sector, I know it can be done much, much better, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think we found out with two of the water projects where we allocated $1. I
am willing to take a look at this and just adding just $1 to all four of 'ern and see how it goes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause, Chairman, we got same access to the banking-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --institutions, we have the same access to Corporate Board Rooms that the
Administration has-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --okay, so I hope the Administration doesn't think we're not getting our
phone calls and our networking from those institutions that are telling us, what the hell you
spending our tax money on, too, 'cause they pay taxes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, thank you, Mr. Chair, and I wholeheartedly agree with Mr.
Hokama and you about changing this whole thing to a dollar. I know that there's some...and
also just on another note, all our CIP, just make 'em a dollar and then when they get the bids
come back, but that's another subject. Just want to make sure that, you know, that the people
don't see what we're willing to...how high we're willing to go. But that being said, these dollar
amounts total up to $5.9 million, which means there's gonna be about $9.5 million left, and
we've got a lot of open space that we need to acquire. Just curious, if the Administration is still
considering the Pali to Puamana setup or what are they intending to do with this, the rest of the
$9 million, Mr. Baz?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. Corporation Counsel was conferring with me on something. Could
you repeat your question?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With the $9.5 million left over, you know, with totaling up all these
amounts, what is the Administration doing? We have a lot of planning to do with that money,
we have a lot of open space that we need to acquire including Pali to Puamana, which has been
mentioned many times and a few other places.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I...as far as today, this is what has been discussed, there are some preliminary
discussions specifically related to Pali to Puamana, which Mayor will be announcing shortly, but,

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2012

yes, you're correct. There's a significant amount of money in this Open Space Fund, and the
way it had been used in the past was that it sat there waiting for a...usually nonprofit or land
trust to approach the County for use of the funds. This, you know, we're being a little bit more
proactive this year with the Regional Park, you know, in the use of the fund. But in the past it
had been managed by the Parks Department as kind of an ancillary, you know, process and not
actively used, and we plan on actively using it. I don't disagree necessarily with your, the idea of
needing to...in fact, I completely agree with the idea of needing to keep our poker hand a little
concealed. I would love to be able to do that. It would help us in our negotiation process. It
does hinder us sometimes when, you know, they know how much we'll have budgeted for
equipment or how much-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sometimes. ... (chuckles)...
MR. BAZ: --we have for Capital Projects and things like that. Sometimes, yeah, and generally that's
why the procurement, State, Procurement Code is set in place to, you know, prevent, you know,
gouging of vendors from the County. But for these specific items when it comes to land
acquisition when we're looking at it, it...whether if you put a dollar in for this or any project,
what that would require then is a budget amendment. And, you know, I've heard a number of
occasions this past year of the number of budget amendments that the Administration sent down
to Council was significant and haven't had a chance to even review all of the budget
amendments that we sent down. So if... unless the process was changed, that submitting a dollar
would be very difficult to manage that process. Not saying I would disagree with the policy of it,
I'm just saying the process would be difficult.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, and, Mr. Chair, I understand that. But if it's gonna save the...it
has the potential to save the County a lot of money, that's something, I mean, you as the Chair of
the Committee for the last what six, five years-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --four, seems like longer, huh--you would know if that would be an
undue burden on the, on the Committee, but it's something that I would, you know, I may even
include in my proposal, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, I know we had that issue last year and we had some briefing,
briefing, not only briefing but from Corporation Counsel in regards to that $1 that we may be
violating the Charter, but we gonna take it...review that again and, you know, ensure that if we
put in a dollar, you know, we're okay so we'll do that. Yeah, I agree, put in a dollar on, you
know, things like this would probably significantly save the County a lot of money. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: May I just make one more comment? Regarding this project specifically with the land
owner for the acreage in Central Maui for the Regional Park, I was not involved with the
negotiations, myself, and just was provided information from Management, but the, you know,
the budget ordinance currently only has $4 million and it's supposed to be for more acreage--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --and, you know, so while we even tried to negotiate that amount, that was unsuccessful.
So, you know, whether it's a dollar in there or any amount in there, even if it's less, we know, of
course we're gonna have to come back for budget amendment than what's the ultimately
negotiated price. But it didn't necessary prevent the landowner from requesting more-CHAIR PONTANILLA: More, yeah, understood.
MR. BAZ: --yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Understood.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and again, you know, the Chair had requested that we come through the
budget amendment process and then I'll take care of it. But some of the budget amendment, you
know, I felt strongly against it and, you know, by reviewing what, you know, was being
requested so again, you know, this Chair will take up budget amendments but you gotta be fair
for the taxpayers.
MR. BAZ: No, thank you, Mr. Chair, I appreciate that. One recommendation though, instead of a
dollar could you make it a thousand dollars? It makes our balancing quite -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, yeah.
MR. BAZ: --a bit easier.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can do that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment. I was trying to... and again it's just making
the point, yeah, but it's interesting in the past, Mr. White know that the Leg. used $1 for
placeholders as a practice. But, Chairman, you know, while I can appreciate, you know, the
Mayor giving us proposals, yeah, at this point in time, I cannot see the taxpayers of this County,
which are also State tax, State taxpayers to be paying for two regional parks in close proximity. I
am like Mr. Couch, I prefer if we'd move forward 'cause I always thought it was something
worthwhile. It was to preserve as much space, the makai side of the road from Pali to Puamana.
You know, I mean when you go down U.S. 1 on the California coastal areas and whatnot, you
know, you can see the advantages of doing that type of coastal preservation, 'cause it takes care
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of the cultural component, the open space component, as well as the natural resources component
that also includes the near shoreline waters and our island reefs. So for me, you know, if I had to
make a choice, Chairman, you know, it's something that I've been supportive of, you know, for a
long time, you know, throughout all my elective service at least and prior to that. So again, I,
you know, I appreciate sharing some points but again, you know, if I had my opportunities and it
made sense, I would definitely go for that Pali to Puamana component in phase, appropriate
phasing to be affordable, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I agree with the discussion that we've had. What
my understanding is that the Administration is the only one that can negotiate these kinds of
deals. Council's not in the position to do that, is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. And so, Mr. Baz, is the $5 million that you have in here, is that a
yet to be agreed upon price or is that a, is that a final number?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from my understanding that's what was submitted to the owner's Board,
Corporate Board and the...under their review currently so it is the offer.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. 'Cause I think it does make sense for us to put in a small
number, let the, you know, let the Mayor negotiate it and then come back to us-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Come back to the Council for approval.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --for the final approval. So we're not, again, telegraphing what we're
willing to, willing to spend. And I agree with Mr. Hokama, that this strikes me as a kind of park
space that it's not exactly critical for us to use Open Space monies for, because it's in an area
where there's going to be continued development and there may be ways that we can trade for
this as opposed to spending cash out of our Open Space Fund. But I'd like to see the funds used
in areas where there's far less development and focus the monies on preserving view plains and
preserving assets that the community feels are critical from a standpoint of keeping Maui looking
much more gracious and, you know, I like the idea of the Pali to Puamana expenditures. I like
the idea of expanding Hookipa Park, which is one of the...our beach jewels. And I will also be
putting in an, in a request and I guess it will be for a dollar or maybe a thousand dollars
depending on what the, what the group decides. But for a place like Giggle Hill, which
is...which we could've bought a couple of years ago for a relatively small amount of money, but
it's now, from my understanding, in the process of being subdivided and, you know, it...I would
hate to see us lose that and end up with houses built on the top or the sides of Giggle Hill, and
the development in that area is...should be no laughing matter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And thank you for your guys comments. Yeah, you know, I would encourage
the Administration to add or even we can add in regards to this particular area here, and if you
feel that Pali to Puamana is important to the County then, yeah, add it in, put a small...a dollar or
some amount. Yeah, so and the priority would be based on the needs and, of course, the funding.
Okay. Emergency Fund in Section 9-14, Revised Charter of the County of Maui 1983, as
amended, Chapter 3.96, Maui County Code. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This Emergency Fund is a fund that we have available to...pretty
much the only fund that we have available to put money aside in case of emergency. And
historically we had been putting around a million dollars a year into it. Last year, I proposed and
this Council approved adding $3 million to it. We had some additional revenue from
Carryover/Savings that I wanted to set aside. And this year, we are proposing to go back to the
historical $1 million per year into the Emergency Fund. So we're expecting the total fund
balance with this million dollar appropriation to be nearly $20 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think when we go through our Budget Proposals that are working with
yours, your, Chair's proposal Mr. Chairman, now, in my proposal, I can tell you we'll be getting
more cash and I don't have a problem putting it into this type of areas or into additional OPEB or
Retirement Fund, Trust Funds at this time to ensure that we avoid the pitfalls that Mr. Young and
Mr. Machida warned us about earlier in the week, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, we gonna take a short break since we get bare
quorum so that you guys can do your personal thing so we'll recess `til 10:30. This meeting is in
recess `til 10:30. . . (gavel)..
RECESS:

10:22 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:37 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. . (gavel)... The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, right now we on page number nine, Ocean Rec. Fund, Section 13.04.340,
Maui County Code. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, we're looking at the Ocean Recreational-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: --Activity Fund, Section 13.04.340. This was established to...it receives funds from the
Ocean Recreation permits. These are permits for activities such as surfing and the like... surfing
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instruction and the like that are happened on the near shores of Maui County's beaches, and we
expect revenue of $47,000 this year, for a total of Fiscal Year '13 appropriation of about
$385,000 available.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. What can these funds be used for, Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: The provision...including but not limited to the provision of salaries, the purchase of
equipment, and the maintenance of County property.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good to know. Members, questions? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. What expenditures are anticipated to be made from
this fund this year?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the funds that are used that are available for this operation are funds that are used
within the Parks Department and the...for the permit enforcement individuals. From our
recollection during discussion, budget deliberations, there was funds, they didn't pay salaries, but
they paid the operational expenditures of those permit officers.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So if I wanted to find where those funds were being expended,
where would I...would I look in the new permitting section?
MR. BAZ: I have to verify that it be added that in there. As a practice for this year, I had desired to put
the full Special Revenue Funds into the departments' budgets that are responsible for those. We-lack of a better thing--ran out of time in getting that so...but we did put in the ones that had E/P
counts related to them, and it doesn't look like the Park Permits and Enforcement Program
is...what's listed in the 6-304 to 6-307 is just General Fund. So this is additional funds that
would be expressed to you after the funds are expended in the Finance Director's quarterly
report.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So it's basically a fund that's available for miscellaneous.
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, majority of these funds, these Special Revenue Funds, are deemed
appropriated for the purposes upon enactment of the budget ordinance or upon receipt of the
funds. So those funds then begin...become available for the Administration to expend for these
purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Does that apply to each of these funds, each of these Revolving Funds?
MR. BAZ: It'll be stated in the enacting ordinance, so if you look at the County Code as relates to like
for specifically this one, it says there's established and created a fund to be known as the Ocean
Recreational Activity Fund. Any fees collected pursuant to this article shall be deposited in the
Ocean Recreation Activity Fund and are deemed appropriated upon receipt and may be expended
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for purposes related to implementation of this article including but not limited to...you know,
and it expresses what it can be.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Chair, I'd like to request a list of which of these funds are
considered appropriated with the passage of the, of the budget so that we know exactly which
ones are open for, you know, for expenditure. And the other question I have is...in this
particular fund, we're anticipating 47,000 in revenues and there's a current balance of 337,000.
So is it correct to think that what we are appropriating for the Administration to expend is that
total amount?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Administration has a flexibility to spend the entire 385,000 without
coming back to us?
MR. BAZ: --theoretically, all the funds listed in the Special Purpose Revolving Funds, there are some
limitations, which we can review and express to you, I guess, in further discussion like the Open
Space and the Affordable Housing and like and the like, but those funds are appropriated and
available for expenditure upon receipt of the funds. So these are estimated funds but we're
basically dancers, yes, we have the ability to spend up to whatever money is received in that item
when it's available to us.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Either newly received or already in the... 'cause those amounts have
already been appropriated by -MR. BAZ: Yeah. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --that definition.
MR. BAZ: Further, Section 14 of the general budget provisions states, the Special Purposes Revenues
set forth in Appendix A Part 2, attached here to and made a part there, here of are expected to be
on hand as of June 30 th , 2012 or derived by the County during Fiscal Year 2013 from the
programs or activities described in the Maui County Code at the references set forth under A
through P therein. The balances remaining in each of these Revolving or Special Funds as of
June 30, 2012 is hereby re-appropriated to the particular fund for expenditure for the purposes
identified in the ordinance establishing a Revolving or Special Fund. Revenues derived from the
particular program or activities during the fiscal year are hereby appropriated for expenditure for
the purposes identified in the ordinance establishing the Revolving or Special Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Does the Administration have a general policy applying, which it
applies to expenditures from these funds with respect to a certain percentage of what is...what is
currently in the fund plus the newly acquired or is it just left open?
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MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, Member White, it varies by fund as you can see from like the Open Space and
Affordable Housing Fund, you know, they're lump sums that they get appropriated for certain
projects. For the funds that have employees or active programs that are involved, we do keep a
slight balance available. We going make sure we don't want to spend it all down just in case an
emergency comes up, but it really has been dependent. For a number of years these funds
weren't used. The General Fund monies were used. When the General Fund monies got tighter,
a few years ago, more of these appropriation have been used, so that's why you'll see a lot of
them have built up balances beyond what they might receive and expend in a year.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Chair, I'd like to have a, an accounting of what has been, what
has been expended from each of these funds in this past fiscal year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And if the Department or if the Director can provide us with the
anticipated expenditures for the upcoming year, I would appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions? Sir, Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Baz, the anticipated, is that based on a projected
increase in the number of permits for this upcoming fiscal year or is it flat?
MR. BAZ: I'm pretty sure it's about flat.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It's about flat.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And your reference to the use of the monies, you reference salaries?
MR. BAZ: There are certain funds that pay for salaries, this fund does not. If you'll notice like, for
example, D, which is the Plan Review, Permit Processing, Inspection Revolving Fund. There's a
proviso that limits the salaries and disbursements for...disbursements for salaries, Premium Pay
is limited to 13 equivalent personnel for that specific fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That fund, yeah.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, and so for this one, we do not pay any personnel out of it.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, so could park rangers be considered, you know, like a potential?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, if there was enough money in this, we could fund some park rangers out of this.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would follow the general direction that Mr. White is going. I
had proposed at one time before we had this new Special and Revolving Funds, to sunset
everything and have the departments come to rejustify its reestablishment in the County Code.
But, you know, again this is not about this Administration, this occurred, has been occurring in
previous Administrations. I'm willing to take away and amend the blanket amendment that
addresses all of these funds that is pre-appropriation authority to be deleted. And I say that
because it continually impresses me how certain departments after being denied by Budget
Committee and Council through this budget process thing, can still purchase or acquire or fund
positions that was never authorized. So you know again, this old dog continues to learn. You
want it, you come back and ask for it, you know, or maybe let's consider as a budget section
requirement, no, you know, it's a program budget and fine, but you cannot cross A, B, C
Accounts. You stay in your A Account and do whatever you want, but you cannot use C
Account or B Account money for A and vice versa. You wanna do that, you come for an
authorization to transfer between Accounts 'cause I'm tired of always getting the phone call,
why is this happening in this County, and I cannot explain because we never did authorize it. So,
you know, I think maybe it's something we need to learn because in the past, the legislative
branches, confidence, and in the integrity of the Administration was very high, okay, very high.
But things have been occurring within my tenure that I, you know, question whether or not we
should just give blanket pre-appropriation authorities anymore. So that is a rhetorical question,
Chairman, that I don't expect an answer at this time unless you want to make this, us five
Members, I can take a vote right now if you want, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama, yeah, I agree with you 100 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Chair, I think Mr. Baz has a...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. We're not asking for a response.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, no, Mr. Chair, I don't have a response for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we got some creative people out there, I know.
MR. BAZ: I do have a response to Mr. White's question about the Special Revolving Fund
expenditures. In the Finance Director's Quarterly Report, as of December 31 St , Section 5 is
expenditures, Section 5C is Revolving and Special Programs, and in there it has the year-to-date
expended, current encumbrances balances available are all listed in there.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But the activity, we don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. Yeah. I would, I would if you don't mind, Chair, I would just
like to add to Mr. Hokama's point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It's our understanding from... Staff requested a list of all equipment
purchases that were unbudgeted, and it's our understanding that there are...I don't know what
status it is. I...it looked like it was purchased already but my understanding at this point is these
vehicles have not yet been purchased, but we approved a fire tanker truck for $700,000. It's not
known to me whether the Fire Department already had bids but they purchased it for 410,000.
And I don't know if the monies came from the remaining amount or not, but on our list of
unbudgeted expenditures, there are five personal vehicles, not specialty vehicles, but five
personal vehicles being purchased by the...or in the process of being purchased by the Fire
Department. It gets back to...okay, so if we approve $700,000 for a fire truck and you don't
spend it, you have free license to do whatever you want with the balance? I don't think that's
this body's intent and so I, I'm a little bit troubled by that. And I'm not asking for a response
either but...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I think what we can do is put in some language in regards to if the tanker
costs $700,000 and we paid 400 that the unused funds can only be utilized for the purchase of the
tanker, in other words, $300,000 go back to the General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right, and is...I just find it hard to understand, hard to accept that if.
you know, if...and it gets back to what we're talking about earlier. Come back to us when
you've got the bid, don't come to us and ask for 700 when it's gonna cost much less, so thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And just for all your information, we provide, provisoed the $700,000 for the
tanker only. So if they did anything else then we going find out.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well then, I would like to request Staff to follow up and see where the
purchases are and maybe the funds are coming from their A or B Accounts. And if they
are...when they know that we have been disallowing all personal vehicles last year's budget and
all this year, so thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, you know, so who would, who would approve purchase of
that size?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr....
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Purchasing.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the director department would request to purchasing...the use of the funds for
equivalent purchases comes through...would come through the TEPS Program and did for
$700,000 for the purchase of the tanker truck. I...not sure if I recall the other five vehicles
coming through as TEPS as well, but generally equipment over $25,000 is supposed to be
coming through the travel, the out of state Travel, Equipment, and Professional Services review
team, which is made up of me and Mayor, MD, Chief of Staff We have found instances where
the Purchasing Department was not aware that they hadn't gone through the TEPS Program and
allowed purchases and we've start to tighten that up.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh, okay. That, you know, even with the proviso, even with the
proviso.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just for your information, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Go.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Are you done, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, well, I'll yield to Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair, Chairman, again, I do have a PAF that the Council Service is drafting
to tighten up by Code the parameters of procurement. However, under State law, while Mr. Baz
has shared some of the internal controls and reviews that they are trying to have, I guess, all the
departments follow appropriately, currently the law, if anybody is going...is being held
responsible and is going to be taking legal action against, it's the Chief Procurement Officer, as
for the Administration, it is the Director of Finance and he bears the brunt of the responsibility
by State statute, just as Mr. Mateo bears the brunt of full responsibility as Chief Procurement
Officer for the Legislative Branch of the County. They are the end, not per people by position,
that has to face the fire and pay the price if there's violations to procurement, that's by State
statute.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Maybe Staff could help us with advise us who
generated the list of unbudgeted expense, unbudgeted purchases.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2012

MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, you know, I can't, I can't say who generated the list itself,
but the list was attached to a correspondence from Director Baz's office.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: And just for further notice, we...support is going to be distributing a response, a
further response to this particular inquiry as far as source of the funds for those fire vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, okay, good.
MR. KANESHINA: So I understand it's being processed right now, so we should have that to you
shortly.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's move on. This is Affordable Housing Fund, Section 9-20,
Revised Charter of the County of Maui, 1983, as amended, Chapter 3.35, Maui County Code.
Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and this, similar to the Open Space, is a Charter required deposit of
2 percent of Real Property Tax Revenue. I failed to state in the Open Space Fund discussion that
the amount of the that ... (inaudible)... Revenue's is subject to the Charter requirement of at least
2 percent. So we...while we budgeted two percent as far as the estimated Real Property Tax
Revenue as of our transmittal of the budget, if it does change this number will change as well.
As you can see, there are projects that have been set aside by Council, projects that were
proposed as part of prior affordable housing plans, proposals that were a part of the current
affordable housing plan proposal, and this is for your review, Mr. Chair. There are 14 different
items on here that are suggested by the Administration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Can you provide some clarity on the first one, provided that
$2.2 million be for affordable housing projects in West Maui, subject to 3.35, Maui County
Code.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. From my understanding, this was a developer deposited funds,
and I believe that they actually have about $3.2 million left in those developer deposited funds.
So, you know, we...because it's not County or Property Tax generated, it...yeah, and again, Mr.
Chair, the funds here are not just the 2 percent from the Affordable Housing Fund Charter
amendment but also from other related deposits that are a part of the Affordable Housing,
Chapter 3.35. And so this fund is, like I said, Mr. Chair, developer deposited funds that were
specified specifically for the West side.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, perhaps if Mr. Baz could walk through some of these so we
could be refreshed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I'll go right down the 14.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I wanna complete by 11:30 that's why.
MR. BAZ: I...Mr. Chair, if you want I can go real quick and then if Members have specific questions...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Go to number two.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Number two is $2 million for the purchase of land to be used for affordable housing,
and again, Mr. Chair, this is something when, that when the Affordable Housing Fund was
created, County Council had put this proviso in specifically to set aside $2 million for the
purchase of land. They saw that, that was an important factor. Similar number three there,
provided that $2 million be utilized for assist families that are within 81 to 140 percent of the
County median income, and I know some of the Members have expressed their desire to make
sure that the gap group of people are met and so that's what that fund set aside is for. Two and
three-quarter million dollars is set aside for the Imi Ikena Affordable Housing Project loan to
DBR Development. They have some provisos in there that need to be qualified before we can
enter into a contract with them for that. Number five provided-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair? Chairman, can we-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --just so that we can get rid of this one and this one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Go.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, this has been sitting for couple of years as I, as I understand, is
that correct, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would like to put a clock because I want them to feel the fire of my
dissatisfaction. If they not gonna perform within a certain deadline, you gonna lose the funding,
and I rather give another entity an opportunity to provide the housing that this was intended to
provide. So if they don't perform, you gonna lose the money, and I want...and I'm seriously ask
the Committee to consider a clock or a deadline for these guys to perform, 'cause I think it's
important. You cannot be open ended and then the end result is we still do not have the housing,
Chairman. You and I, you know, I think we all want the units, and these guys keep doodling
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their thumbs. You know, I'm not satisfied with this no progress kind of status, so I hope we
would consider a clock and put them on notice that if they don't perform within a certain date
these funds disappear, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, you read my mind. Okay. Go ahead, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I know there has been some activity but definitely not enough to the
Mayor's satisfaction.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, too, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Provided, that $300,000 be for the loan to the Na Hale 0 Maui to establish a DeedRestricted Buy-Back Revolving Interim Loan Fund. They haven't entered into the agreement yet
as far as I know and may not by the end of this fiscal year so that's why we added that here.
Provided, that no more than $70,000 be for Administrative Expenses is set forth by the Code-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep.
MR. BAZ: --so that is in there. Set, number seven, Mr. Chair, provided, that $1.1 million be for the
County of Maui Neighborhood Revitalization Program of Na Hale 0 Maui. This was under the
review of your Committee prior. Same thing with the $500,000 for the Kulamalu Affordable
Housing Project planning, master planning and entitlement issues that we might have to deal
with. The number nine, provided, that $350,000 be for the Hale 0 Ekolu project for the ARC of
Maui. Number ten, provided, that $400,000 be for the Harbor Lights Project of Habitat for
Humanity and sold to applicants 80 percent or below the median income. Number 11, provided,
that $340,000 be for the Aloha House Clean and Sober Rental Project. Number 12, provided,
that $300,000 be for the Hale Makana 0 Waiale Rehabilitation Project for Ka Hale A Ke Ola
Homeless Resource Center. Number 13, provided, that $300,000 be for the First-Time Home
Buyers Program of the County of Maui to assist approximately 20 first-time home buyers by
providing up to $15,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You know, this is General Fund by Charter placed into this account
for this time of purposes, and yet, we also having another part of the budget, another General
Fund request for the very same thing. I think it's unfair that we, you know, we do it in this
matter. We either going pay from one part of General Fund for this type of programs and be
clear about it, where the money is coming from and ensure accountability but, you know, I don't
wanna...I prefer that we consider eliminating. I know it's allowed currently but as a practice.
But I rather not have it part of a departmental request, which is General Fund and then come
back to this, which is also General Fund but--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --directed by Charter committed to General Fund. So why would we use the
departmental request and that could possibly be used for other priorities that the Committee feels
is just as important? So I just bring it up because I prefer that if this is how we wanna approach
it, I can support it but I'm gonna delete it from the Department side and put it to other mandated
programs, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair, my recollection is that these last two items 13 and
14, we had discussed and rejected-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --I thought.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So, I guess, my question is, why are they in here if we rejected them
earlier? And maybe, if Staff can refresh our memories as to which of these more recent items
were actually rejected and if so, why are they even on the list?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, if I can recall 13 and number 14.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's my recollection. I don't know if there were others. I think the
others were okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The other ones were okay, starting from number seven.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I could provide some clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. BAZ: The Budget and Finance Committee was presented the Affordable Housing Plan from the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns, which included those two items. The original
proposal was one lump proposal that Budget and Finance Committee requested that we break up
the proposals individually. Those two last proposals has, have not been heard by the Committee
and acted upon. So they haven't necessarily been rejected, they just haven't been...and there's
no action been taken on them. And it is a proposal of the Administration to put them into the
budget.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So is there a reason why the Administration has put them into the
budget in two places, that hoping that one of them will survive or hoping that both will survive?
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MR. BAZ: Well, Mr. Chair, this ordinance as we approve it for the Fiscal Year '13 budget will
supersede the budget amendment that is provided, so if this is enacted as of July l st , this will
supersede the previous.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, but to Mr. Hokama's point, the First-Time Home Buyers Program
is a, is also listed as a grant in Housing and Human Services, I believe for 200,000.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And so this would add...this would more than double it, so...
MR. BAZ: May I...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White, since these haven't been approved by the Committee, we can
remove 'ern.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, to answer your question, Member White, regarding the reason why they're here, the
Administration is unclear with Section 9-20, the Affordable Housing Fund of the Charter. Item
number four says the Council shall by ordinance, establish procedures for the Administration and
expenditure of the revenues in this fund. Any appropriations to this fund shall not substitute but
shall be in addition to those appropriations historically made for the purposes stated in this
section. So we're unclear if that means that we can completely remove the General Fund funded
item and just have the Affordable Housing Fund funded item. Honestly, it will be my preference
to have just one, and it would be the Affordable Housing Fund item, but that's...since we're
unclear of that section there are two requests.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The last one.
MR. BAZ: So number 14, provided, that $1 million be for the Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program
of the County of Maui, and again, this was a proposal by the Administration, which was
discussed and I did hear some concerns about this as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The other day, yeah. Everybody understand the last one? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Chairman, we know the status of Section 8 funding, and so if
you look at the last set, two sentences regarding the wait list for a period not to exceed two years,
I can kinda go along, but then there's the or until they are transferred to the Section 8 Program.
Nobody's getting on the Section 8 Program. So are we going to hold them on forever? I got a
problem with that one--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's my point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --`cause this is again, a Federal program. You know, we have needs for
County programs, Chairman. You know, so I'm gonna tell you now, I get issues with this
consideration, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Post-Employment Obligations Fund.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. The...this is OPEB as discussed by Mr. Young. They
are...our calculation here, $17'/2 million as discussed when we went through the Finance
Department's Countywide budget is based on the actuarial that was transmitted to us back in
2008 or 2009, and we've had been funding. As you can see and as in the report, Finance
Director's Quarterly Report, we have not been sending the money to the State, so there is a
projected to be a balance of 61, over, a little over $61 million to pay this fund should
we...basically, Mr. Chair, what the Administration is waiting for is enactment of that law. Once
there is a set aside that is in law that are funds that we put into it are deemed to be for our bill
then we'll pay into it. Until that case, we're very hesitant to do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair, do you know when the next valuation is coming?
Mr. Young, I believe testified that it was coming in May. Do you know when in May?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I'm not aware of that. I'm, you know, when they get it then the ERS, excuse me,
the EUTF Board will probably review it and then pass it on to the employers at some point, but
I'm not sure when that might be.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, and the other question I have, Chair, or the comment
I wanted to make is after the meeting, I asked. Mr. Young what he anticipated the new valuation
would show. And he...his feeling is that it's gonna reflect a significant increase in our unfunded
liability. So and again, this is one those monkeys on our back that we've gotta take care of.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions on this?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh. Maybe just one more question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm sorry. The balance that you show after this year's contribution is
61.3 million. What would that be if we included the prior year's contributions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Staff can help out?
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MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, you know, I'm gonna have to probably send out a request to
Finance to see how the GASB-43 interpretation from the State's independent auditors this past
year is gonna play to our beginning balances. When Mr. Young alluded to, earlier in the week,
was that the State's independent auditors basically in a nutshell said that the trust that the EUTF
set up was...didn't satisfy trust according to GASB-43, so the legislation they're introducing is
to set up a trust that's complies with that requirement. So in the interim, the County had to pick
up on their balance sheet, the contributions they made in prior years. So I need to clarify that but
I think the beginning balance might need to be adjusted, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, my...I realize that we've not sent the monies to EUTF and that
my understanding is that the balance of 43.7 million is actually in a County held account. But
what I'm asking is-CHAIR PONTANILLA: What was paid prior?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --what have we paid prior? And from what Mr. Young testified that
those monies are sitting in the State treasury and not actually in EUTF. I hope he's, I hope he's
right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And he said that the contributions that we made were identified separately,
you know, among all of the counties, so yeah there is a balance in there and probably the
information that we need to get, Scott.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Thank you, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from rough calculations, I believe we've transmitted two payments to them so if

you want to add that to this it'd be...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, my recollection was that prior to this year's contribution, the total
that we've put into the account is in the neighborhood of 70 million.
MR. BAZ: I believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Okay. So the last one, Mr. Chair, the Administration proposed a budget amendment to fund
the Economic Development Revolving Fund, which was created during this past fiscal year, in
amount of $3 million out of certified revenue of Carryover/Savings. This, Mr. Chair, is a

An
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reflection of that funds. They have been certified as Carryover/Savings and so we could not
review them as revenue in our budget for Carryover/Savings.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I understand we still in Committee.
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, so this is just a reflection of that proposal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: First, I want to thank Mayor Arakawa. You know, this was partly because I
initiated a request in discussions with him, and it was primarily to see if we could move forward
some digital media initiatives forward that this County and, hopefully, Lanai would've had the
benefit of immediate job stimulation. And so I wanna give, you know, the credit where it's due.
The Mayor's, you know, responded very quickly. He presented the Council with a proposal with
funds, and so, you know, again to be fair we need to give credit when it's due and the Mayor did
step up. He sent it down and I know it's still in our Committee, Chairman, but the Mayor, I
think, bought in and believed this would have helped create immediate jobs especially for our
people on Lanai with some digital media initiatives. And I hope that this Committee would
consider passing that proposal out and create this fund, again, and maybe we need to take away
the pre-authorization consideration, but the point is we've got people out there and we even
heard comments and testimonies today about how some of how our employees feel. The need
for further job growth, which helps everybody when the cash is flowing within the community
and so I am very supportive of the intent of this fund. Again, I want to thank the Mayor for
stepping up to the plate and moving very quickly, and then I ask the Committee and the Council,
that let's do our part and get this established as soon as possible, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Okay, that concludes the review
this morning. Members, for your information, just want to let you know that Member Baisa has
already submitted her proposal. She's gonna be back here when we, you know, receive our
proposals from the other Members, so with that...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, to avoid any confusion as we reach deadline, which is 4:00 p.m.
for you, as you stated to all of us, just so to avoid any possible last minute, you know, concerns,
the appropriate way to submit the proposal to you is to for the Member to hand to you, directly,
their proposal? What is the proper way you wish to receive the transmittal or the draft?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well in the case of Ms. Baisa, she had already made an appointment and
already departed because of a commitment made prior. The Chair received her proposal, but for
the rest of the Members, at our four o'clock meeting then, the Chair will accept all of the rest of
the Members on their proposal. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I don't recall whether we did it just as a hard copy or whether does it
help at all if it's an electronic copy?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Last year, we received hard copies. Electronically...I would prefer hard
copies so that viewing members can see that it's being presented. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Chairman, you know, part of the digital format in my difficulty
is I couldn't break it down to the more detailed component that I'm making adjustments to.
`Cause if you look at some of the digitized form, it's in large block sums by division or
departments. Like look at Planning, it's just one large number, you know, although they have
Current and Long Range. And so for me I'm going to present you my favorite form, paper with
my-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. That's the one I have.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --detailed, with those details and of course revenue adjustments accordingly
and the CIP adjustments, thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. So, Members, with that we gonna recess until four o'clock this
afternoon. Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, just to clarify, I think the main, the main intent of the
accepting the proposals is really just to accept it in open session, the hard copy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. With that, we will recess `til 4 o'clock this afternoon. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

11:19 a.m.

RECONVENE:

4:01 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, thank you for coming back to provide Chair with your proposal. At this
time, if Staff can go to each of the Members, pick up their proposals. We have already collected
Member Baisa's proposal this morning because of prior commitment and also Chair Danny
Mateo, his proposal because he does have a prior commitment to today's meeting. Staff and I
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will be working over the weekend to formulate the Chair's proposal, and hopefully by Monday
morning we do have a proposal for you to review, and next week is gonna be a tough week.
Hopefully we can complete on Friday, next week Friday in regards to the County's Fiscal Year
2013 budget. If anybody has any questions at this time...Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, I'd like to see if we can get it for the record
what would happen...`cause we didn't...we had these numbers last year and I don't see 'cm
anywhere, but what the additional revenue would be if the minimum tax was raised from 150 to
two...250 and 300, if we have that, if we can get that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: We can get that probably by Monday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: By Monday, we'll have it by Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and Chair I just want to state it for the record that
I did not turn in any adjustments on the RPT at this point. I'm deferring to see your proposals
and my fellow Members during Committee discussion, so I'm looking to put my additions there
or subtractions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

(excused: GCB and DAM)

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members? If not then the Chair will adjourn this
meeting and we'll see you bright and early, nine o'clock, Monday morning. The Budget and
Finance Committee meeting for April the 27 th is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .

ADJOURN: 4:04 p.m.
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